
1 
 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 
 

 

Annual General Meeting 2021 

February 25, 2021 

1 p.m. Awards/Recognitions 

1:30 p.m. Annual General Meeting Commences 

Held Remotely 
 

1. First Nations Acknowledgement 
2. Call to Order 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
4. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest 
5. Chair’s Remarks ...........................................................................................................................................  3 

6. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2020 ......................................................................  4 
7. Business Arising from the Minutes 
8. Presentations 
 8.1)  2020 Annual Report - Bonnie Carey .....................................................................................................  9 
9. Business for Approval 

9.1)   2020 Annual Report ...........................................................................................................................  10 
9.2)    2020 Audited Financial Statements – Presentation ............................................................................  10 
9.3) Election of Officers ............................................................................................................................  10 
9.4)  2021 Budget and Levy ........................................................................................................................  11 
9.5) Appointment of Auditor.....................................................................................................................  19 
9.6) Appointment of Bank .........................................................................................................................  19 
9.7) Appointment of Solicitor ....................................................................................................................  19 
9.8) Authorization to Borrow ....................................................................................................................  19 
9.9) Appointment to Conservation Ontario ...............................................................................................  19 
9.10)  2021 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule ........................................................................................  19 
9.11)  Thames River Clearwater Revival .......................................................................................................  20 

10. Business for Information 
10.1) CAO’s Report .....................................................................................................................................  21 
10.2) Water Management ..........................................................................................................................  23 
10.3) Planning and Regulations ...................................................................................................................  26 
10.4) Conservation Area Lands ...................................................................................................................  35 
10.5) Conservation Services ........................................................................................................................  38 
10.6) Communications, Outreach and Education ........................................................................................  39 
10.7) Joint Health and Safety Committee Inspection Minutes - November 6, 2020 and November 18, 2020  44 
10.8) Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes - December 17, 2020 .......................................  57 

11. Correspondence 
11.1)  County of Elgin Official Plan Review ...................................................................................................  59 
11.2)  Christian Farmers - Commentary Bill 229: A Watershed Moment for Conservation Authorities ..........  65 
11.3)  Christian Farmers - Working Together for a Healthy Future ...............................................................  67 
11.4)  Conservation Ontario’s Comments on the “Proposed implementation of provisions in the Planning  

Act that provide the Minister enhanced authority to address certain matters as part of a zoning order” 69 
11.5)  Proclamation of Provisions of the Conservation Authorities Act .........................................................  72 
11.6) Ashton Land Donation .......................................................................................................................  77 

A G E N D A  



 2 

 
12. Other Business 
13. Adjournment 
 
 

 

 

1. First Nations Acknowledgement 

 

We will begin by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is the traditional territory of 

First Nations people who have longstanding relationships to the land, water and region of 

southwestern Ontario.  We also acknowledge the local lower Thames River watershed 

communities of this area which include Chippewa’s of the Thames First Nation, Oneida Nation of 

the Thames, Munsee Delaware Nation and Delaware Nation at Moraviantown.  We value the 

significant historical and contemporary contributions of local and regional First Nations and all of 

the Original peoples of Turtle Island (North America). We are thankful for the opportunity to live, 

learn and share with mutual respect and appreciation. 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 3 

5. Chair’s Remarks 

With life changing rapidly in 2020 and respect to COVID-19, a clear understanding of the year is not easy to articulate.  
When the pandemic hit Ontario in March, millions of employees began working from home, including all but a few 
essential workers at the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority (LTVCA) – an unprecedented and ongoing 
change.  The loss of life and the hardships experienced by Ontarians in the pandemic will leave lasting impacts, 
especially the tragic loss of friends and loved ones. Yet, the pandemic response also leaves strong evidence of our 
region’s collective sense of kindness and resilience.  
 
In many ways, 2020 was a banner year for the LTVCA.   More residents undertook stewardship of their properties as 
they worked from home, or came to a conservation area to recharge and experience the peace of nature.  The LTVCA 
was privileged to provide these much needed services to our residents during these very challenging times.  
 
How the LTVCA does business may change, as we consider that the new normal could be working from home.  Yet, 
the LTVCA remains committed to always providing local and personal service to the residents of our watershed.  
 
At the end of 2020, the Province of Ontario passed Bill 229, Protect, Support and Recover from COVID-19 Act - 
Schedule 6 – Conservation Authorities (CA) Act.  This Bill proposes significant amendments to the Conservation 
Authorities Act and Planning Act.  Changes will diminish the LTVCA’s ability to serve its municipal partners and other 
watershed stakeholders, putting public safety and watershed science at risk.   As we move forward, the LTVCA is 
committed to working with the province to limit the impacts of this bill on the people in our watershed.  
 
It is understood that the next phase of moving out of the pandemic must look beyond the COVID-19 pandemic and 
seek to build resilience into the way everyone, including the LTVCA functions.  In the fall of 2021, the LTVCA will move 
forward with an update to its Strategic Plan.  This will include many opportunities for the residents of this watershed 
to provide input into our programs and services.  While COVID-19 exacerbated various existing challenges, it also 
created conditions for accelerating good ideas. In 2021, the LTVCA will work to bring the good ideas of the 
community into how we plan to move forward in the continued improvement of the Lower Thames Valley watershed.  
The future of this watershed is not only our inheritance, it is our opportunity, and our responsibility.  
 

  



 4 

6. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes  

 

 



 5 

 

 

 



 6 

 

 



 7 

 

 



 8 

 

 



 9 

8. Presentations 

8.1)  2020 Annual Report 
 
Bonnie Carey, Manager, Communications, Outreach and Education, will be providing a Power Point Presentation of the 
LTVCA’s 2020 Annual Report. 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 10 

9. Business for Approval 

9.1)  2020 Annual Report 

Recommendation:  That the LTVCA’s 2020 Annual Report be approved as presented. 

 

9.2)  2020 Audited Financial Statements Presentation 

A representative of the LTVCA’s Auditor will be providing the Board of Directors with the Audited Financial Statements 

for the 2020 year ending. 

Recommendation:  That the LTVCA’s 2020 Audited Financial Statements be approved as presented. 

 

9.3)  Election of Officers 
 
Before the election, the current Chair will vacate the position and Mr. Mark Peacock will assume the Chair for the 

purposes of the elections and declare all elected offices, positions and appointments vacant.  Additional motions may be 

necessary should appointment of scrutineers be required in the event of an election. 

Recommendation:  That M. Peacock be appointed to chair the elections. 

 
 

a) Chair 
 

Recommendation:  That the nominations be closed. 

 
 

b) Vice-Chair 
 

Recommendation:  That the nominations be closed. 

 
 

c) Executive Committee (3 members to be elected + Chair & Vice-Chair) 
 

Recommendation:  That the nominations be closed. 

 
 

d) Ska-Nah-Doht Village & Museum Advisory Committee (3 members to be elected) 
 

Recommendation:  That the nominations be closed. 

 
 

e) Ice Management Committee (2 members from Chatham-Kent, member from Lakeshore + Chair & 
Vice-Chair) 
 

Recommendation:  That the nominations be closed. 

  



 11 

9.4)  2021 Budget and Levy 

Date:  February 25, 2021  
Memo to:  LTVCA Board of Directors 
Subject: 2021 Budget and Levy 
From:      Todd Casier, CPA, CA, Manager, Financial and Administrative Services 
 
Background 

The LTVCA Board adopted the Preliminary 2021 Budget and Levy at its meeting on December 10, 2020, in 
accordance with the following resolution:  

“Moved that the 2021 preliminary budget totaling $3,319,396 be adopted, and that the member 
municipalities be advised of the budget and their share of the proposed levy as calculated; it being noted that 
the Authority is required to provide 30 days’ notice of its intention to adopt a final budget and levy.”   

Terms:  

• Matching levy: municipal funding matching provincial grant under section 39 of the Conservation 
Authorities Act $81,467.23 (non-weighted vote, one vote per member) 
 

• Non Matching Levy: general municipal funding (weighted vote based one vote per member Current 
Value Assessment formula provided by province) 
 

• Special Levy: municipal funding for projects specific to their area (non-weighted vote, one vote per 
member) 

Current Situation 

As per legal requirements the Preliminary Budget was circulated to all member municipalities on December 
18, 2020, and to date, no responses or requests for further information regarding the budget have been 
received.  Several minor adjustments have since been incorporated into the Preliminary Budget, with no 
additional impact on total expenditures or municipal levy. 

Discussion 

The 2021 Final Draft Budget of $3,319,396 represents an increase of $15,350 or 0.5% in overall spending in 
comparison to the 2020 approved budget of $3,304,046.  The greatest variances from 2020 to 2021 include: 

• Technical Studies increase due to new grant funding; 

• Ska-Nah-Doht Village due to not replacing a staff retirement. 
 

The corresponding increase in the municipal levy is $14,625 or 0.88%.  As in previous years, annual 
adjustments to each municipality’s assessment within the watershed vary, ranging from -0.68% for West Elgin 
to 2.52% for Dutton-Dunwich, as shown in the last column of the table accompanying the budget on page 18 
of the agenda package.  
 
 
 
  



 12 

 
In accordance with Ontario Regulation 139/96, whereby the “non-matching levy” must be approved by a 
recorded, “weighted” vote of the Authority, the levy is shown under five columns: 

• Special benefiting (C-K Flood Control, Greening/Natural Heritage, totaling $205,000); 

• Non-matching, totaling $1,395,615; 

• Matching, totaling $81,467 which is equal to the provincial grant provided under Section 39 of the 
Conservation Authorities Act; 

• Total General Levy, $1,477,082; 

• Total Municipal Levy, $1,682,082.   
 
For the non-matching levy, votes are weighted in proportion to each municipality's share of the total Current 
Value Assessment (CVA), and approval requires that votes equal to or greater than 51% of the CVA be cast in 
favour of the levy.  The "Non-Matching" levy for 2021 is $1,395,615 as shown in column 5 of the table 
accompanying the budget on page 18 of the agenda package.  
 
The remaining levy is voted on as one member, one vote, and consists of $205,000 direct special benefit and 
$81,467 matching levy, as shown in columns 4 and 6 on page 18.  
 

The following recommendation will be brought forward in the Annual General Meeting 

Recommendation:  That the non-matching levy of $1,395,615 be approved and apportioned in accordance 
with the levy apportionment table. (weighted vote) 

 

Recommendation:  That the 2021 proposed budget totalling $3,319,396 be adopted as presented, and that 
the matching levy of $81,467 and the Chatham-Kent Greening, Natural Heritage and Flood Control Levy of 
$205,000 be approved and apportioned in accordance with the table accompanying the budget. 

 
 
The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
4. Improve Transparency and Understanding of Financial Statements 
 
Respectfully Submitted  
 
Todd Casier, CPA, CA 
Manager, Financial and Administrative Services 
 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



13 
 

 



 14 

 

 



 15 

 



 16 

 



 17 

 



 18 

 



19 
 

9.5)  Appointment of Auditor  

Recommendation:  That the firm of Baker, Tilly CK, LP be appointed as the Lower Thames Valley 
Conservation Authority’s auditor until the next Annual Meeting in February 2022. 

 

9.6)  Appointment of Bank 

Recommendation:  That the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce be appointed the Lower Thames Valley 
Conservation Authority’s bank until the next Annual Meeting in February 2022. 

 

9.7)  Appointment of Solicitor  

Recommendation:  That the firm of Mr. James D. Wickett be appointed the Lower Thames Valley 
Conservation Authority’s solicitor until the next Annual Meeting in February 2022. 

 

9.8)  Authorization to Borrow 

Recommendation:  That the Authority Chair or Vice-Chair and the CAO/Secretary Treasurer be authorized 
to borrow from the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce a sum not to exceed $300,000 for the Lower 
Thames Valley Conservation Authority and to be repaid from grants received from the Province of Ontario, 
Government of Canada, levies assessed the member municipalities and self-generated revenues.  

 

9.9)  Appointments to Conservation Ontario  

Voting representative; 1st alternative; 2nd alternative. 
 

Recommendation:  That the “Chair” be appointed as Voting Representative; and the CAO as 1st Alternative. 

 

9.10)  2021 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule  
 

All meetings to be held remotely until further notice. 

 

Thursday, April 15, 2021 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

Thursday, June 17, 2021 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

Thursday, August 19, 2021 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

Thursday, October 21, 2021 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

Thursday, December 16, 2021 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

Thursday, February 17, 2022 – 2:00-4:00 pm 

 

Recommendation:  That the meeting schedule for 2021 and the Annual General Meeting for 2022 be 
endorsed. 

 

  



 20 

9.11)  Thames River Clearwater Revival  
 
To:  LTVCA Board of Directors 
From:  Jason Wintermute, Manager, Watershed and Information Services 

 Mark Peacock P. Eng. CAO, Secretary-Treasurer 
Date:  February 25, 2021 
Subject: LTVCA Endorsement of the Thames River (Deshkan Ziibi) Shared Waters Approach to Water Quality 

and Quantity (SWA) 
 
Background 
 
During the last Board of Director’s meeting, staff presented the Thames River (Deshkan Ziibi) Shared Waters Approach 
to Water Quality and Quantity (SWA). The completed document is the result of many years of collaborative work by the 
project partners including First Nations, Federal Departments, Provincial Ministries, Municipalities and Conservation 
Authorities. LTVCA staff, led  by Jason Wintermute, Manager, Watershed and Information Services, participated 
extensively on technical committees responsible for the development of water quality and quantity recommendations. 
These recommendations were developed to align with current LTVCA program priorities and guide work related to 
water quality and quantity issues on a watershed basis for 20 years.  
 
The SWA reflects a more holistic approach compared to existing water management plans, incorporating aspects of 

Indigenous Traditional Knowledge (ITK) in addition to western science and management objectives. The success of the 

SWA relies on a consensus-based decision process to determine how to implement the recommendations and 

acknowledges that many partners will play a role in addressing the resources needed to undertake the 

recommendations.  

The project steering committee has identified the importance of endorsement of the SWA by all partners to continue to 

collaborate and implement solutions to water based issues in the Thames River watershed. Partners are currently 

seeking endorsement for the SWA to ensure continued collaborative work and to maintain the momentum of the 

initiative. Endorsements marks the final step in completing the SWA report and will be included in the final version 

highlighting collaborative commitment to act on the recommendations right in the document.  It should be made clear 

that the report contains a series of recommendation and that implementation and financial commitments are not part 

of this endorsement.   

Staff are recommending that the LTVCA Board of Directors, endorse the Thames River (Deshkan Ziibi) Shared Waters 

Approach to Water Quality and Quantity  

Recommendation:  That the Lower Thames Valley Conservation Authority Board of Directors endorses the Thames 
River (Deshkan Ziibi) Shared Waters Approach to Water Quality and Quantity (SWA)  
 
And that this endorsement be forwarded to the Thames River Clear Water Revival (TRCWR) project steering 
committee. 

 
The report aligns with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 

1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 

 
Prepared by: Recommended by: 
Jason Wintermute, Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
Manager, Watershed and Information Services CAO, Secretary Treasurer 
  



 21 

10. Business for Information 

10.1) CAO’s Report  
 
Date:  February 25, 2021 

Memo to:  LTVCA Board of Directors 

Subject: C.A.O.’s Report 

From:      Mark Peacock, P. Eng., C.A.O. / Secretary Treasurer 

CA Act Changes 

Background 

With the amendments to the Conservation Authorities Act (“CAA”) in Bill 229, the Protect, Support and Recover from 
COVID-19 Act (Budget Measures), 2020, now passed by the Legislature, the government has made a series of 
substantive amendments to the CAA in 2017, 2019 and in 2020, resulting in a number of un-proclaimed provisions in the 
CAA. 

On February 2, 2021, some specific provisions in the CAA were proclaimed to initiate changes to conservation authority 

governance, for consistency in administration, transparency and financial accountability, as well as increased municipal 

and provincial oversight of conservation authority operations.  These provisions are not tied to any specific regulations, 

and relate only to provisions from the 2019 and 2020 CAA amendments.  Specifically, these include: 

• Government requirements (e.g. Non-derogation provision clarifying that nothing in the CAA is intended to affect 

constitutionally protected Aboriginal and treaty rights);  

• Provisions related to conservation authority governance (e.g. changes to the conservation authority municipal 

membership); 

• Minister’s powers (e.g., enabling the Minister to issue a binding directive to a conservation authority following 

an investigation); and 

• Housekeeping amendments. 

70% Municipal Membership Requirement 

The LTVCA has one non-municipally elected member from the Municipality of Middlesex Centre and in the past the City 
of London has had a non-municipally elected member.  Moving forward these municipalities will have to ensure that 
that their appointments meet the 70% Municipal Membership requirement or obtain permission from the province for 
non-municipally elected representation.  All the rest of the members on the current board are municipally elected.   
 
Term limits of Chair/Vice-chairs and Rotating Amongst Participating Municipalities 
 
LTVCA does not have term limits defined with its by-laws for the positions of Chair and Vice Chair.  Implementation of 
this provision will begin after the first meeting held following the proclamation date of February 2, 2021.  Therefore, 
following the 2020/2021 AGM on February 25, 2021, the term limit of the chair and vice-chair will be limited to two 
years.     
 



 22 

Should the board feel this is an impediment to LTVCA governance, LTVCA is able to submit a request to the Minister to 
waive or adjust this requirement.  Please advise the CAO if the Board wishes to adjust the legislated term limits and the 
request process can be initiated. 
 
The Use of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles  
 
Each year the LTVCA receives confirmation from our auditor through a professional opinion that the financial statements 

are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for public sector entities or “PSAB”.  The applicable 

wording from the 2020 financial statements from Baker Tilly, is found in the first 3 pages of the annual audit.  No 

changes in our financial processes and statements will be required.  

Posting of Minutes and Financial Statements 

There is an updated requirement where all minutes and financial statements are required to be posted to the LTVCA 

website.  Currently minutes from executive committees are approved by the Full Authority and therefore available in the 

Full Authority agenda packages posted on the LTVCA website but are not posted separately.  All Full Board meeting 

minutes and financial statements have been and will continue to be posted to the website. 

Should the ministry require separate posting, the change can easily be made on the LTVCA website. 

Transition to New Permit Issuance Requirement in the CA Act Regarding Minister’s Zoning Orders (MZOs) 
 
MECP plans to host a training session on March 3, 2021 regarding the transition to the new requirements.  In addition, 

Conservation Ontario (CO) plans to host a working session and the CO site will house information regarding existing 

ecological compensation policies. 

It is important to advise, update, and train staff and members on the changes to the CA Act and how they may relate to 

permitting and hearings at the local level. 

Next Steps in the CA Act Update Process 

The remaining un-proclaimed provisions will be proclaimed in two further stages over the coming months to align with 

the roll out of proposed regulations and policy.  These include:  

i) Provisions related to natural hazard management, mandatory programs and services, community advisory 

boards, the agreements and transition period, and fees. 

ii) Provisions related to municipal levies, and standards and requirements for non-mandatory programs and 

services 

 

Recommendation:  That the C.A.O. / Secretary Treasurer Report be received for information. 
 
 
 
The report aligns with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
 
Respectfully Submitted  
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary Treasurer 
  



 23 

10.2) Water Management  
 
10.2.1)  Flood Forecasting and Operations  
 
Flood Messaging and Flood Events 
 
There have been 18 flood messages issued since the last written report to the Board of Directors.  One of these was a 
standing message issued for Lake St. Clair and Lake Erie intended to cover January or until the lakes froze over.  All the 
other messages related to the Lake Erie shoreline.  Four of these messages were Flood Warnings for Erie Shore Drive, 
seven were Flood Watches, and six were Flood Outlooks.     
 
Events where Flood Watches didn’t get upgraded to Warnings still represented occurrences of flooding.  It was just that 
the flooding occurred overnight.  The majority of the Flood Watches and Warnings covered flood events that appeared 
to be similar in size.  Peak winds during the events generally ranged from 40 to 49 km/hr from a southerly direction.  
Although an event on January 13th, which only reached 36 km/hr, still produced enough flooding to cause water to be 
accumulate on properties and flow across the roadway.  Freezing temperatures at this time of the year always 
complicate forecasts as icing can make flooded areas even more dangerous, but the buildup of ice can also reduce the 
effects of wave spray.       
 
There was no flooding observed by LTVCA staff or reported in Lighthouse Cove during this period.         

 
Ice Conditions 
 
Lake St. Clair has now frozen over.  Although Lake Erie is not completely frozen over, there is a substantial amount of ice 
along the shoreline.  The ice cover on the lakes should prevent shoreline flooding until the lakes melt out in the spring. 
 
Ice has also started to accumulate on the Thames River.  After the first week of February, theoretical ice calculations 
suggest an average of 10 cm of ice on the river in the downstream areas.  Based on weather forecasts, by the end of the 
month there could be 22 cm of ice on the river.  While historical examinations of previous ice jams from the 1960s 
through 1980s suggested there needs to be around 30 cm of ice on the river for jamming to occur, the recent ice jam of 
February 2019 suggests differently.  During the February 2019 event, a sudden cold snap increased the thickness of river 
ice up to around 21 cm, which was then followed by a warm spell and rain, which caused the river to break up and jam.  
By the end of the month, there could be an equivalent amount of ice on the river, but long-range forecasts are not 
calling for any kind of warmup.  
 
Report on Lake Conditions 
                  
Lake Erie’s daily average water level on February 1st was 174.67 m (I.G.L.D.).  Water levels had been relatively stable over 
the winter and this was only up 2 cm from where they were on November 1st. Short-range forecasts issued at the 
beginning of the month were calling for water levels to rise by 2 or 3 cm by the beginning of March.  Water levels at the 
beginning of February were down approximately 47 cm from 2020’s peak daily average water level seen on May 30/31st, 
but still 67 cm above what would be considered normal water levels for this time of the year.   
 
Lake St. Clair’s daily average water level on February 1st was 175.68 m (I.G.L.D.).  Water levels had been relatively stable 
over the winter and this was only up 4 cm from where they were on November 1st.  Short-range forecasts issued at the 
beginning of the month were calling for water levels to remain the same by the beginning of March.  Water levels at the 
beginning of February were down approximately 40 cm from 2020’s peak daily average water level seen on May 19/20, 
but still 88 cm above what would be considered normal water levels for this time of the year.  
   

Looking into next year, unless there is a significant change in weather from what would be considered normal, high 
water levels should be expected next year as well. 



 24 

The figures below are published by the U.S. Army Corp of Engineers and graph the monthly average water levels and 
water level forecast over the next 6 months.  These versions were published at the beginning of February.  
 

 
 

 
 



 25 

10.2.2)  Flood Control Structures 
 
Regular seasonal maintenance continues on all the LTVCA’s flood control structures.  Maintenance on the actuators at 
the Diversion Channel Dam was conducted.  Divers from Watech Services were brought in to clean the gates of the 6th 
St. Dam which lie on bottom of McGregor Creek.  Significant effort was also put into resolving a change of easement at 
300-340 Grand Ave east for the Thames River water level gauge; a gauge used for the operation of the 6th St. Dam.            
 
10.2.3) Low Water Response Program 
 
During the spring, summer and autumn, brief reports outlining the watershed conditions as they relate to the Provincial 
Low Water Response Program are created by LTVCA staff.  As this program is concerned with river and stream type 
water usage (not Great Lakes), and that type of water usage is primarily agricultural in the LTVCA, these reports are not 
drafted during the winter. However, the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry does broad screening throughout 
the province all year long for the program. While the February screening was not released in time for this agenda, the 
January screening suggested the Lower Thames watershed was not in any type of low water condition.  

 
10.2.4) Watershed Monitoring  
 
Watershed-wide, surface water quality monitoring continued in December and January at 22 sites throughout the 
watershed.  The sampling was being conducted under two programs, the Provincial (Surface) Water Quality Monitoring 
Program (PWQMN) and a special grant under Canada-Ontario Agreement (COA) Respecting the Great Lakes Basin 
Ecosystem.  Due to continuing delays at the MECP, the COA grant is still to be finalized.  The PWQMN program has been 
extended beyond its typical November end date to allow for some winter sampling this year.  However, with the frozen 
conditions and iced over watercourses, it remains to be seen how much water quality sampling can be conducted this 
winter.    
 
In the later fall or early winter, the LTVCA conducts water quality sampling at groundwater wells throughout the 
watershed as part of the Provincial Groundwater Monitoring Network (PGMN). As per the program, C.A. staff conduct 
the field work and MECP funds the infrastructure and conducts the lab analyses.  Thus far the LTVCA has sampled 5 
wells, but due to delays still has 2 wells left to sample.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
2. Increase the Awareness of the Value of Good Watershed Stewardship 
5. Improve Capital Asset Review 
 
Recommended: Reviewed: 
Jason Wintermute Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
Mgr., Watershed & Information Services C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 
 

  



 26 

10.3) Planning and Regulations  
 
10.3.1)  Planning  
 
From the first of January 2020 through to the end of December 2020, there were 407 planning submissions reviewed by 
staff and for the first month of 2021 (January) for this reporting season, there have been 27 planning submissions 
reviewed by staff with respect to the Provincial Policy Statement, Section 28 of the Conservation Authorities Act and 
Ontario Regulation 152/06.  On average it takes roughly 5 days to respond to submissions, ranging from same day 
response to 15 days for more involved planning submissions.  There have also been 32 responses to telephone inquiries 
that staff have responded to for the month of January as well as numerous email responses to inquiries. 
 

Planning 
Numbers 

2019  
Totals 

Jan 
totals 

Feb-
Mar 

totals 

Apr-
May 

totals 

June- 
July 

totals 

Aug-
Sept 

totals 

Oct-
Nov 

totals 

Dec 
totals 

2020 
Totals 

Jan 
totals 

2021 
Totals 

Chatham-
Kent 

150 19 52 31 45 44 39 29 259 13 13 

Elgin 76 6 11 7 4 14 23 2 67 6 6 

Essex 16 3 8 3 10 5 14 3 46 3 3 

Middlesex 48 0 4 8 7 5 10 1 35 5 5 

Total 
Numbers 

290 28 75 49 66 68 86 35 407 27 27 

*OP, ZBL, OPA, ZBLA, Consents, Minor Variances, Plans of Subdivision, Legal Inquiries 

 
Staff involved in plan review activities are working from home, with COVID 19 Standard Operating Procedures in place as 
well as work from home plans.  Several conference call / zoom meetings have taken place with proponents / consultants 
/ agencies / member municipalities around planning matters. At this time, no site inspections have taken place for this 
department.  Planning services continue to be used / accessed by the public, our member municipalities and other 
agencies via telephone and email communication at this time. 
 
10.3.2)  Section 28 Regulations / Permitting 
 

In December 2020, staff received 70 permit applications with respect to Section 28 of the Conservation 
Authorities Act and Ontario Regulation 152/06.  For the entire 2020 year, staff reviewed a total of 556 permit 
applications.  Of the 556 permit applications, 550 applications were able to be approved by staff, three 
applications required hearings in front of the Executive Committee, two applications were withdrawn, and one 
application was considered “incomplete” (i.e. not enough information was submitted for staff to evaluate the 
application) and could not be processed. 
 
Following four consecutive record-breaking years, the number of permit applications to develop or alter 
within or adjacent to hazardous lands set a significant new record for 2020.  The below figure illustrates the 
rising number of development applications in hazardous areas since 2005. 
 



 27 

 
 
Due to the increased number of permit applications being received by the LTVCA, supplemental revenue from 
permit application fees increased significantly.  The figure below summarizes fees collected from Section 28 
permit applications over the last decade: 
 

 
 

200
5

200
6

200
7

200
8

200
9

201
0

201
1

201
2

201
3

201
4

201
5

201
6

201
7

201
8

201
9

202
0

# of Permits 23 62 78 84 82 150 145 166 239 226 193 268 271 287 494 556

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

# 
o

f 
P

er
m

it
s

LTVCA Permit Application Trend

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

To
ta

l P
er

m
it

 F
ee

s 
C

o
lle

ct
ed

Year

Annual Revenue from Permit 
Application Fees



 28 

Below are some Section 28 permitting statistics for 2020: 
 

➢ 238 properties were surveyed for flood proofing requirements related to O.Reg. 152/06 as well as 
related to municipal zoning by-laws / official plan requirements; 

➢ 78% of all applications were within Chatham-Kent; 
➢ 60% of the applications were for private property owners for projects such as construction or 

modification of structures, shoreline protection repairs, and/or bank alterations; 
➢ 29% of applications were for municipal or county projects (drainage or infrastructure); 
➢ 10% of applications were for utilities (such as for oil, gas, or communication); 
➢ 1% of applications were for stewardship permits (fees waived); and, 
➢ Total of permit application fees = $128,050.00. 

 

Historically, January tends to be a slower period for permitting which allows staff to catch up on filing from the 
previous year, complete policy updates and other items on the department’s work plan for the year.  
Historically, the number of incoming permit applications ranges between 10 and 20 for the month.  In January 
2020, staff received 28 applications.  In January 2021, staff received 70 new permit applications.  Of the 70 
new permit applications, 41 of the properties required surveying services from the LTVCA for flood proofing 
requirements. 
 
10.3.3)  2020 Permit Processing Timelines 
 

Conservation Ontario developed a document entitled “Client Service Standards for Conservation Authority 
Plan and Permit Review” with input from Conservation Ontario Timely Reviews and Approvals Taskforce as 
well as stakeholders such as the Ontario Home Builders’ Association.  Conservation Ontario Council endorsed 
the document on 24 June 2019. 
 
One of the suggestions in the document was to breakdown permit applications into a minimum of three 
categories:  major applications, minor applications, and routine applications.  The differences between each 
category are based on complexity of the application.  Major applications require significant review and staff 
time, minor applications do not require as much staff time, and routine applications are generally quick and 
fairly standard (such as municipal drain maintenance).  The document offers the following delivery standards 
for making a decision on a complete application: 
 

Application Category Delivery Standard 

Routine 14 Days 

Minor 21 Days 

Major 28 Days 

 
Using the customer service standards developed by Conservation Ontario, the below charts indicate that 73% 
of routine applications met their delivery standard, 80% of minor applications met their delivery standard, and 
40% of major applications met their delivery standard. 
 



 29 

 
Complexity of 

Application 
# of Days to Review Permit Applications 

0 - 14 Days 15 - 21 Days 21 - 28 Days 29 - 90 Days > 90 Days 

Routine 96 27 9 0 0 

Minor 261 72 52 31 0 

Major 2 0 0 1 2 

 
It should be noted that if a decision has not been rendered by the conservation authority within the 
appropriate timeframe, the applicant may contact Jason Wintermute, Manager, Watershed and Information 
Services who serves as the “client service facilitator”.  If the applicant is not satisfied with the response from 
the client service facilitator, the applicant can submit a request for administrative review by the CAO and then, 
if not satisfied, by the LTVCA’s Board of Directors. 
 
For the most part, the percentage of applications meeting their delivery standards has slightly improved 
between 2019 and 2020.  This is largely due to the Resource Technician providing additional support to the 
Water Resources and Regulations Technician.  In January 2021, the recently hired Water Resources Engineer 
began their training on Section 28 permitting. 
 
10.3.4)  Property Inquiries 
 

In 2020, the Water Resources and Regulations Technician received and responded to 1,736 property inquiries 
which was up 30% over the year prior.  During the first month of 2021, the Water Resources and Regulations 
Technician has received 120 property inquiries.  Some of the reasons that regulations and planning staff 
receive property inquiries include: 
 

➢ Realtors looking to sell a property and wanting to know any potential restrictions for future buyers. 
➢ People purchasing property who want to know more about the site-specific hazards and regulations. 
➢ Landowners wanting to learn about best management practices specific to their property. 
➢ Landowners wanting specific information on what is permitted in regulated areas. 
➢ Insurance companies looking for floodplain information. 

➢ Municipal staff or utility companies planning future projects. 
 
 
 
  



 30 

10.3.5)  Section 28 Enforcement: 
 

In 2020, 30 new complaints / tips were received and one notice of violation was issued with multiple ongoing 
investigations - the goal being to obtain compliance or future compliance.  26 of the 30 complaints / tips were 
violations of the Conservation Authorities Act and five of those files have been closed without prosecution.  Of 
the 30 complaints / violations received, 19 were in Chatham-Kent, nine were in Lakeshore, one was in West 
Elgin, and one was in Southwold. Ongoing enforcement issues from previous years were also monitored and 
continue to be investigated. 
 
As of 31 January 2021, six new complaints / tips have been received from the public. 
 
 
The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
2. Increase the Awareness of the Value of Good Watershed Stewardship 
 
Recommended: Reviewed: 
Jason Wintermute Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
Manager, Watershed and Information Services C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 31 

10.3.6)  Section 28 – CA Applications 
 

 



 32 

 

 
 
 



 33 

 

 
  



 34 

 

  
 
 

  



 35 

10.4) Conservation Area Lands 
 
10.4.1)  January 1 - January 31, 2021 Visitation  
Note – very limited numbers of school programs and public events due to COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
Longwoods Road Conservation Area – 1160 people (154 in 2020) (Includes 2 people per pay & display permit 
(transaction) Pay and Display Permits – 580 vehicles (77 in 2020)  
 
C.M. Wilson Conservation Area – 216 people (48 in 2020) (Includes 2 people per pay & display permit (transaction) Pay 
and Display Permits – 108 vehicles (24 in 2020)  
 
Sharon Creek Conservation Area – 57 Day Use Transactions on MacKay Pay (12 transactions in 2020) 
 
2021 Parking Passes – 45 sold in January 2021 (20 sold January 2020)  
 
 
10.4.2)  Conservation Areas 
 
Despite the cold weather and provincial lockdowns our Conservation Areas continue to be very busy, especially on 
weekends. 
 

 
It is common for properties like Sharon Creek, 
Longwoods Road and CM Wilson to have 50-100 cars per 
day on weekends. 
 
As such, staff have spent extra time dealing with the 
public and arranging after hours security measures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Parking area at CM Wilson – January 30, 2021 
 
174 LTVCA 2021 Conservation Area Parking Permits have been sold to date. 
 
 
Eastern District 
 
Ontario Job Creation Program staff are back to work and are 
making great changes at Longwoods Road CA.  
 
New Trails, upgraded parking areas and new signage are 
really starting to make a difference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 36 

 
Eastern District Supervisor- Vance Stark is implementing the principles of LEAN at our Longwoods Road Workshop.  
 

 
It can be defined as: A set of techniques to identify and eliminate 
waste from operations.  A system of organization principles to 
maximize value and eliminate waste. 
 
Staff have done a great job organizing: tools, equipment, fleet 
and methodology for day to day activities. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Sharon Creek continues to be a very busy property, the McKay Pay Phone App is a great tool to collect fees with very 
little infrastructure (no need for gate or pay and display machine).  
 
Western District 
 
Like the East, all properties are busy, especially CM Wilson with well over 100 cars per weekend.  Contracted security 
staff. MEU, was scheduled the weekend of February 6, 2021 and issued several warnings and tickets for violations of 
Conservation Authority Regulations. 
 
Historic Barn at CM Wilson 
 
Our staff are showing off their carpentry skills by upgrading 
the old barn. 
 
Proper stairs lead to a spacious loft that looks over the floor 
plan of the old barn.  
 
The LTVCA rents this structure out, with full kitchen, it makes 
for an ideal setting for weddings, family reunions and parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
Big “O” CA 
 
Staff are ordering planting stock for the restoration of our newly acquired land adjacent to the Conservation Area, with 
plans for planting this upcoming spring. 
 
New property Acquisition-Ashton Forest 
 
The 25 acre Carolinian Forest donation is now complete.  Staff will complete a baseline survey and begin assessing which 
tax program is best suited for this land.  Special thanks to Kenneth Ashton for his generous donation and protection of 
land. 
 
 



 37 

The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
2. Increase the Awareness of the Value of Good Watershed Stewardship 
3. Strengthen Brand Recognition 
7. Improve Internal Communications 
9. Improve Conservation Areas Operations 
10. Improve Human Resources 
11. Improve Training Opportunities for Staff 
 
 
Recommended: Recommended: 
Bonnie Carey Randall Van Wagner 
Manager, Communications, Outreach and Education Manager, Conservation Lands and Services 
 
Reviewed: 
Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 

 

  



 38 

10.5) Conservation Services  
 
Staff are busy with projects, grant applications, site visits and outreach and promotion of our programs.  Highlights 
include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

• launch of new Soil Health Program (incentives for landowners ex. Cover crops)  

• two applications to the Species at Risk Fund (bat monitoring and phragmites control)  

• Species at Risk staff applied for 4 Canada Summer Jobs positions  

• Dutton/Dunwich large stock tree and seedling orders 

• CK Real Estate Board tree planting initiative 

• Species at Risk staff are reaching out to landowners targeting restoration work in high priority sub watersheds 

• CK Drainage partnering on green infrastructure projects 

• Outreach and Promo of all our Stewardship programming has had a huge improvement, check out our website 
and new brochures to see the new look 

• CK Public Health Unit tree planting orders 

• ALUS site visits and project planning 

• Rondeau Barrier Beach restoration committee 
 
This new wetland cell on Harwich Rd was created by our staff, area contractors,  
landowners and partners: Ridge Landfill Trust, Engie, Ducks Unlimited Canada  
 

 
 
The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
2. Increase the Awareness of the Value of Good Watershed Stewardship 
3. Strengthen Brand Recognition 
7. Improve Internal Communications  
12. Strengthen Program Review Policy(s) 
 
Recommended: Reviewed: 
Randall Van Wagner  Mark Peacock, P. Eng. 
Manager, Conservation Lands and Services C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 
  



 39 

 

10.6) Communications, Outreach and Education  
 
10.6.1) Website Updates  
 
During the pandemic the LTVCA website is updated to inform the public about the procedures we are using to respond 
to inquiries and requests to purchase items from the Conservation Authority as offices remain closed to the public. 
Ongoing are the postings of watershed and shoreline conditions, Minutes and Agendas of Board Reports, changes in 
fees, updates regarding programs and services of the LTVCA and virtual/onsite events and activities.  The website design 
is being refreshed and will have a new look hopefully in 2021. 
 
10.6.2) Social Media  
 
Since the December 10th Board of Directors’ Meeting, daily social media posts on the LTVCA’s social media platforms 
have been issued: (Facebook – 2,505 followers for an increase of 87 followers); Twitter – 1,163 followers for an increase 
of 26 followers; Instagram – 662 followers for an increase of 47 followers) have been issued.  Posts focus on the LTVCA’s 
ongoing programs and services, following environmental issues across our watershed, how we are social 
distancing/adapting to the COVID-19 Pandemic and keeping public informed.  The Ska-Nah-Doht Village’s Facebook page 
currently has 2,128 followers for a huge increase of 396 followers since mid-December 2020!  
 
Posts are circulated to Directors of the LTVCA and Foundation, First Nations Communities, Municipal 
Councils/Clerks/CAO’s, MP’s and MPP’s, Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee, all staff, Conservation Ontario, and 
watershed media (as needed).  
 
We continue to introduce video clips on YouTube of staff speaking about features at Longwoods and Ska-Nah-Doht – 
providing short virtual tours of the site.  These have been encouraging visitors to come out and explore the conservation 
area on their own.  In addition, a River and Creek Safety Program video (narrated PowerPoint show) has been posted on 
YouTube as staff wanted to continue their safety messaging to youngsters.  (Inclass River and Safety Program not being 
offered in 2021 due to the pandemic). 
 
We have reinforced the importance of all the COVID-19 protocols including messaging about social distancing, removal 
of garbage and pet waste, and have encouraged visitors to support our conservation areas through payment of parking 
fees or purchase of 2021 parking passes.   
 

December 2, 2020 – February 9, 2021   - Daily Social Media Post Topics  
 

• Water Management Mondays  
-Schedule 6 Changes Fall Short of Addressing CA 

Concerns 

-Ground Water Quality Monitoring 

-Flood Watches 

-About the Backwater Control Dam and Pumping 

Station 

-How Does the Diversion Channel Work? 

-We had a Record Breaking Year for Permits 

Reviewed 

-2020 in Review – flood messaging, plan reviews, 

sites monitored 

 

 



 40 

 

• Stewardship Tuesdays 

-2021 Tree Species Price List 

-Cedar Springs Restoration Project 

-Woodcraft Donates 100 Trees 

-Retro Suites Goes Green 

-Online Tree Order Forms Available 

-Thankyou Forest Ontario 

-Join Our Email List 

-How’d We Do in 2020 – tree planting 

-Environmental Restoration in 2020 

-Our 2021 Stewardship Programs 

      -Aquatic Species at Risk Program 

      -Our New Van Wrap 

      -Enhancing Watershed Health in 2020 

 

• Conservation Area Wednesdays 

-Parking Passes On Sale and Great Deal! 

-Big O Contributors Celebrated 

-Conservation Area gate closures due to weather 

forecasts 

-Thank you MEU 

-Is the Ice Safe to Play (X3) 

-Lands Team Worked Hard in 2020 and Clearing 

Diversion Channel 

-Keeping Dam Gates Clear of Debris 

-LTVCA CA’s Open 

-CA Booklet Sponsorship Opportunities 

 

• Outreach and Education Thursdays 

-Acknowledging Archaeologist’s Assistance with 

Artifact Collection at SND 

-LTVCA Thanks You for Your Support in 2020 

-River & Creek Safety Video Coming Soon 

-Trail Etiquette 

-Think Happy Thoughts for Spring 

-Trail Checking 

-No Snowshoe Rental 

-60 Years of Conservation! 

-River and Creek Safety Video Now on YouTube 

 

 

 

  



 41 

• Phosphorus / Water Quality Fridays 

-High Waters in Local Drains 

-Flow Graphs at Monitoring Pumping Station 

-Doing Crop Inventories 

-Runoff Sampling 

-Merlin Drain Monitoring 

-Soil Health Program Launch 

 

 

 

 

 

• encourage people to use our conservation areas safely during the COVID-19 pandemic -  physical distancing, 

reminders 

• articles of public interest from local media regarding ecosystems and the environment, and local 

environmental issues (erosion, flooding, emergency preparedness, wetlands, grasslands, pollinators) 

• watershed community based environmental initiatives including reposting municipal posts; sharing London 

Canoe Club posts (for Sharon Creek Conservation Area); August Tree Giveaway campaign 

• cool facts about nature – local plants, birds, trees, animals and thing families can do with their children to 

engage with nature in their own back yards or in a conservation area during the pandemic – helping people to 

reconnect with nature 

• supporting Conservation Ontario’s social media campaigns re:  World Wetlands Day, Drinking Water Source 

Protection 

• Salting Shift Campaign 

• sharing of neighbouring Conservation Authorities’ information 

• sharing of municipal public health information – CK Public Health, London Middlesex Health, St. Thomas Elgin 

Health, Windsor Essex 

 
10.6.3) LTVCA Annual Reports and Presentations 

 
The latter part of December, January and February have been busy months compiling several reports reflecting on and 
documenting the programs and services of the LTVCA in 2020.  An in house 30 page report for LTVCA staff and Directors 
along with an executive Summary Report (attached) for the public and municipalities have been completed.  Both will be 
available for download on our website following the AGM.  As well, a PowerPoint presentation of the Annual Report has 
been produced and will be viewed at the AGM as well as available on our website. In addition, a PowerPoint 
presentation will be viewed celebrating the recipients of the LTVCA’s annual awards for volunteer service and 
environmental accomplishments.  The staff team are thanked very much for all their submitted reports, statistics and 
pictures that contribute to these final products 
 
10.6.4) Education  
 
Realizing that the River & Creek Safety Program would not be an in-class deliverable to watershed grade 2’s this year, a 
narrated water/ice safety video was created and made available for teacher and classroom access on the LTVCA 
Education Facebook page and on YouTube. This safety program has saved lives over the years and is now more 
accessible for schools to get the message across to students. 
 



 42 

With restrictions in place for school field trips an emphasis on creating videos from existing PowerPoint presentations 
has been ongoing. These videos cover far-ranging topics from sciences through geography and history and will be a boon 
for future field trip experiences to Longwoods/Ska-Nah-Doht. 
 
Staff will also engage in creating a Virtual Lake Huron-Lake St. Clair Corridor Field Trip that will feature challenges and 
ways to meet those along this interesting and varied shoreline. This project is funded by the Ontario Ministry of 
Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) and will be a joint effort combining input from SCRCA, ERCA, LTVCA and 
the First Nations communities. Secondary level students are the target audience and education strands will include 
science, history and geography.  St. Clair Region Conservation Authority is taking the lead on this project.   
 
A Western Lake Erie Student Summit project has also begun in partnership with all Lake Erie conservation authorities to 
provide a virtual environmental summit for secondary level students.  This project has also been funded through MECP.  
We will be participating in this opportunity, led by Upper Thames River Conservation Authority. 
 
10.6.5) Ska-Nah-Doht Village and Museum 
 
Amazing drone shots of Ska-Nah-Doht light up our Facebook page!  GPS Technician, Neil Pothier went out on a weekend 
to practice with the new equipment and captured a couple of great village aerials. With nearly 4,000 views, it’s our best 
social media response to date! 
 
Tis the season for grant applications!  We are researching, webinar-watching and writing to support re-opening of the 
Resource Centre/Museum with available funding.  Applications for summer staff are being accessed through Canada 
Summer Jobs, offering flexibility with hiring and scheduling.  If the pandemic gets under control, Day Camp may resume 
on site or “Camp-in-a-Bag” will continue based on last year’s success. 
 
Contacted schools are very positive about receiving 1 of 6 artifact cases produced as part of the “Longwoods/Ska-Nah-
Doht Village & Museum Enhancement Project” financially supported through a Job Creation Partnership (OJCP) with 
Service Ontario.  It has become a “pilot project” that will surely inspire more sharing of resources from the Museum’s 
Educational Collection.  As well, the Ontario School Curriculum based materials and lesson plans developed by Assistant 
Curator, Leeanne Doxtator for both Grade 3 and 5, will be made available on the Ska-Nah-Doht education website page 
this spring. 
 
After 48 years of touring Ska-Nah-Doht Village, visitors can feel a little safer using the newly created path that finally 
gets them off the main roadway! Thanks to Eastern District Supervisor, Vance Stark along with Brian and Matt from the 
OJCP crew who took advantage of the cold weather to clear the brush.  Now, by crossing the road directly from the 
Museum through the Carey Carolinian Arboretum Kiosk to the Heritage Log Cabin area, it is a leisurely stroll.  Once at 
the cabins, one picks up the new path that winds through the natural surroundings of the forest much sooner than the 
old trail to the village.  Visitors will be able to see more forest life and put themselves into life 1,000 years ago faster! 
 
We have applied for a Tourism Adaptation Grant facilitated by South West Ontario Tourism (SWOTC). If successful we 
will be able to have a touch-free tour of the Museum/Resource Centre. Items include accessible door buttons, display 
barriers, plexiglass barriers and room foggers. Staff will have a big job ahead turning our hands-on museum into a hands-
off experience. 
 



 43 

   
 
 
The reports align with the following objectives of the LTVCA’s Strategic Plan: 
1. Strengthen and Increase Collaboration with Community Stakeholders 
2. Increase the Awareness of the Value of Good Watershed Stewardship 
3. Strengthen Brand Recognition 
7. Improve Internal Communications  
8. Improve Internal Understanding of Roles & Responsibilities 
9. Improve Conservation Areas Operations 
10. Improve Human Resources 
11. Improve Training Opportunities for Staff 
12. Strengthen Program Review Policy(s) 
 

Recommended: Reviewed: 
Bonnie Carey Mark Peacock, P. Eng.    
Manager, Communications, Outreach and Education C.A.O. / Secretary-Treasurer 

  



 44 

10.7) Joint Health and Safety Committee Inspection Minutes – Nov. 6 & Nov. 18, 2020 
 

LOWER THAMES VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 
 

 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY INSPECTION 
 
 

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2020 
 
 
During Covid-19 Health and Safety Inspections are being completed by one Committee Member only. 
 
AREA 5 and part of AREA 1 site inspections completed by Valerie Towsley - Employee Representative.  
 
 
 
 
 
Inspection of AREA 5 sites: Merlin, Lighthouse, Rowsom, Big ‘O’, Two Creeks, Courey and Ward; and Inspection of 
portions of AREA 1 sites:  Admin Building, Colborne and Miller.  See completed Workplace Inspection Record for details. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ITEMS NOTED IN RED and BOLD are considered to need immediate attention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 
 



 46  



 47  



 48  



 49  



 50  



 51  



52 
 

LOWER THAMES VALLEY CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 
 

 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY INSPECTION 
 
 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2020 
 
 
During Covid-19 Health and Safety Inspections are being completed by one Committee Member only. 
 
Part of AREA 1 site inspections completed by Valerie Towsley - Employee Representative.  
 
 
 
 
 
Inspection of the remaining portion of AREA 1 sites:  Diversion Channel, Dam and Pump Station, and Rivards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ITEMS NOTED IN RED and BOLD are considered to need immediate attention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 
  



 54  



 55 

 



 56 
 



57 
 

 

10.8) Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes – December 17, 2020  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee 
 

 
 
The meeting of the Ska-Nah-Doht Advisory Committee was held remotely via telephone, at 6:00 P.M. on Thursday, 
December 17, 2020.  The following members were in attendance: D. Fairbairn, B. Bruinink,  M. Hentz,  and M. Peacock.  
Also present: K. Mattila and A. Vriends. 
 
1. Minutes of the Last Meeting 

 
1. M. Hentz - B. Bruinink 

Moved that the minutes of the September 24, 2020 meeting be approved. 

 
 CARRIED 
 

2. Business for Approval 
 

2.1) Annual Policy Review 
 

2. M. Hentz - B. Bruinink 

Moved That the committee review policies at the November 2021 meeting as per the Advisory Committee 
Constitution and begin a review of the Mission and Vision Statements at the first meeting of 2021. 

 
 CARRIED 

 
3. Business for Information 

 
3.1) Working through the Pandemic Update 
 
Staff continued to engage the community through Pandemic challenges. A new Drive-Thru event, Hallow-Scenes was 
a great success on October 29th and a Pop-up Gift shop was held November 28th. 
 
3.2) Educational Staff Update 
 
Curator, Karen Mattila is retiring on April 30th, 2021. Community Educator, Carlyn Johnston returns in March and 
will assume curatorial duties of the museum. A new job title and description will be drafted. 
 
3.3) Education Programs 
 
Education Staff offered select school programs all out doors. 4 school/groups participated with excellent feedback. 

M I N U T E S  



 58 

 
3.4) OJCP Village & Museum Project Updates 
 
OJCP General Labourers, Brian Watson and Matt Jeffery continued work in the village completing; new bark on the 
southern-most longhouse, a new lookout and new palisade section near the lookout. These positions continue to 
May 2021, work in the village will resume in the spring. As well, Assistant Curator Leeanne Doxtator selected 
artifacts with Dr. Chris Ellis sharing his knowledge to identify arrowheads. Work on developing educational materials 
to complement the artifact cases continued along with cataloguing the Watts Collection. This position continues to 
March 2021. 

 
3. B. Bruinink – M., Hentz 

Moved that the committee received 3.1 through 3.4 for information. 

 
 CARRIED 
 

4. Other Business 
 
4.1)  2021 Preliminary Budget will be sent to community members of the Committee. 

 
4.2)  Bill 229 – Schedule 6 - Changes to the CA Act 

 
M. Peacock gave a brief summary of the effect of these changes on Education/Heritage Programs within CA’s.  
Education/Heritage are considered non mandatory programs of a CA and therefore Municipalities do not have to 
fund them.  CA’s will have to enter into an agreement with each Municipality to have them fund these programs 
through their levy.  Next step is to have the Ontario Government realize that these programs are mandatory and 
therefore Municipalities would fund them without having individual agreements. 

 
5. Proposed 2021 Meeting Dates 

 
Thursday, March 18 at 6:00 pm 
Thursday, June 24 at 6:00 pm 
Thursday, September 16 at 6:00 pm 
Thursday, November 18 at 6:00 pm 
 

6. Adjournment 
 

4. B. Bruinink 

Moved that the meeting be adjourned. 

 
 CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
D. Fairbairn 
Chair 
 
 
 

Recommendation:  That the above reports, 10.2) through to 10.8) be received for information.  



 59 

11. Correspondence 
 

11.1)  County of Elgin Official Plan Review 
 

 



 60 

 



 61 

 



 62 

 



 63 

 



 64 

 
 
  



 65 

 

11.2)  Christian Farmers – Commentary Bill 229: A Watershed Moment for 

Conservation Authorities  
 

 

Commentary 

Bill 229: A Watershed Moment for Conservation Authorities  

December 11, 2020 | Suzanne Armstrong 

 

The CFFO has joined many other organizations and municipalities in opposing Schedule 6 of Bill 229, the 

Protect, Support and Recover from COVID-19 Act, which proposes changes to the Conservation Authority Act. 

Because Bill 229 was a budget bill, full consultation was not required. The request to remove Schedule 6 would 

have allowed, at the very least, for full consultation on the proposed changes to the CA Act. These changes will 

https://ero.ontario.ca/notice/019-2646
https://www.christianfarmers.org/


 66 

almost certainly impact CAs’ ability to protect against natural hazards, such as flooding, and to protect water 

quality. 

This past Friday, government proposed further changes to Schedule 6 at the Standing Committee. Ontario 

Nature reported on these changes and is alarmed by what was proposed. David Crombie and six other members 

of the Greenbelt Council have resigned in protest of Schedule 6, including the new proposed changes.  

Despite widespread public concern, Bill 229 received royal assent on Tuesday, December 8, including Schedule 

6 and the changes to the Conservation Authority Act.  

Last week the CFFO made a submission to the Standing Committee on Finance and Economic 

Affairs  requesting the removal of Schedule 6. In particular, the CFFO is concerned about proposed changes 

that will allow the Minister to directly issue permits. This appears to be another move, similar to the 

government’s use of Minister’s Zoning Orders (MZOs), that will give the government greater power over 

planning and permitting. At the same time this will circumvent the local and scientific knowledge currently 

exercised through the CA permitting process.  

The CFFO is also concerned that the excellent stewardship programs offered by many CAs may be at risk if 

government does not recognize them as integral to CA’s ability to deliver on their core mandate. CA-run 

stewardship projects and programs help to create and protect aspects of the natural landscape, including healthy 

farmland, wetlands and woodlands. These features mitigate flooding by absorbing heavy rainfalls and 

significant snowmelts effectively into the broader landscape, thus contributing to natural hazard mitigation and 

water quality protection.  

As new regulations are developed to support the new law, we will have to wait and see what impact these 

changes will have as they are implemented in watersheds across the province. 

 

Suzanne Armstrong is Director of Policy & Research for the Christian Farmers Federation of Ontario. The 

CFFO Commentary represents the opinions of the writer and does not necessarily represent CFFO policy. The 

CFFO Commentary is heard weekly on CFCO Chatham, CKXS Chatham, CKNX Wingham, and CHLP 

Listowel. 

https://www.christianfarmers.org/media/commentary/bill-229-a-watershed-moment-for-conservation-

authorities?mc_cid=d7af244db8&mc_eid=e246b1c910 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

https://ontarionature.org/news-release/another-twist-of-the-knife/
https://ontarionature.org/news-release/another-twist-of-the-knife/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/david-crombie-ontario-environment-1.5830385
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/toronto/david-crombie-ontario-environment-1.5830385
https://www.kitchenertoday.com/local-news/bill-229-passes-at-queens-park-including-controversial-changes-to-conservation-authorities-3166658
https://www.kitchenertoday.com/local-news/bill-229-passes-at-queens-park-including-controversial-changes-to-conservation-authorities-3166658
https://www.christianfarmers.org/issues/letters-submissions/request-to-remove-schedule-6-conservation-authorities-act-from-bill-229
https://www.christianfarmers.org/media/commentary/new-risk-to-farmland-minister-s-zoning-orders
https://www.christianfarmers.org/media/commentary/new-risk-to-farmland-minister-s-zoning-orders
https://www.christianfarmers.org/media/commentary/bill-229-a-watershed-moment-for-conservation-authorities?mc_cid=d7af244db8&mc_eid=e246b1c910
https://www.christianfarmers.org/media/commentary/bill-229-a-watershed-moment-for-conservation-authorities?mc_cid=d7af244db8&mc_eid=e246b1c910


 67 

 

11.3)  Christian Farmers – Working Together for a Healthy Future  
 

 



 68 

  



 69 

 

11.4)  Conservation Ontario’s Comments on the “Proposed implementation of 

provisions in the Planning Act that provide the Minister enhanced authority to 

address certain matters as part of a zoning order”   
 

 



 70 

 



 71 

 
  



 72 

 

11.5)  Proclamation of Provisions of the Conservation Authorities Act 
 

 



 73 

 



 74 

 



 75 

 



 76 

 
  



 77 

11.6)  Ashton Land Donation 
 

 



 78 
 



 79 

 
 



 80 

12. Other Business 
 
 
 
 
 


